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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 

TYLER DIVISION 
 

BLUE SPIKE, LLC,  
 
 Plaintiff, 
 
v. 
 
WYWY INC. and  
WYWY GMBH, 
 
 Defendants. 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

 
 

Civil Action No. 6:15-cv-487 
 

 
 

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT 
 

Plaintiff Blue Spike, LLC files this complaint against wywy Inc. and wywy 

GmbH (collectively, “wywy” or “Defendant”), and alleges infringement of U.S. Patent 

Nos. 8,712,728 (the “’728 Patent”), 7,346,472 (the “’472 Patent”), 7,660,700 (“’700 

Patent”), 7,949,494 (the “’494 Patent”), 8,214,175 (the “’175 Patent”), and together with 

the ’728, ’472, ’700, ’494 and ’175 Patents, the “Patents-in-Suit”) as follows: 

NATURE OF THE SUIT 

1. This is a claim for patent infringement arising under the patent laws of the United 

States, Title 35 of the United States Code. 

PARTIES 

2. Plaintiff Blue Spike, LLC is a Texas limited liability company and has its 

headquarters and principal place of business at 1820 Shiloh Road, Suite 1201-C, Tyler, 

Texas 75703. Blue Spike, LLC is the assignee of the Patents-in-Suit from Blue Spike, 

Inc. (a Florida corporation), which was the assignee of the Patents-in-Suit from Scott 

Moskowitz and Michael Berry. Blue Spike, LLC and Blue Spike, Inc. are collectively 

referred to as “Blue Spike.” Blue Spike CEO Scott Moskowitz is an inventor on more 
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than 66 U.S. Patents related to managing, monitoring, and monetizing digital content and 

informational assets. Blue Spike has practiced and has continued business plans to 

practice Moskowitz’s patented inventions. Many of Blue Spike’s patents are foundational 

to today’s robust markets for content, which grew into their present form only after using 

Blue Spike’s technology to catalogue, manage, monitor, and monetize that content.  

3. On information and belief, Defendant wywy Inc. is a Delaware corporation, 

having its principal place of business at 560 Lexington Avenue, 16th floor, New York, 

New York 10022. Defendant can be served with process through its registered agent, 

Corporation Service Company, at 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400, Wilmington, 

Delaware 19808. Defendant does business in the State of Texas and in the Eastern 

District of Texas. 

4. On information and belief, Defendant wywy GmbH is a German limited liability 

company, having its principal place of business at Landwehrstraße 60-62, 80336 

München, Germany. Defendant can be served with process through its U.S. subsidiary, 

wywy Inc. or through the Texas Secretary of State. Defendant does business in the State 

of Texas and in the Eastern District of Texas. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

5. This lawsuit is a civil action for patent infringement arising under the patent laws 

of the United States, 35 U.S.C. §101 et seq. The Court has subject-matter jurisdiction 

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§1331, 1332, 1338(a), and 1367. 

6. The Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant for at least the following 

reasons: (1) Defendant has committed acts of patent infringement and contributed to and 

induced acts of patent infringement by others in this District and elsewhere in Texas; 
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(2) Defendant regularly does business or solicits business in the District and in Texas; 

(3)  Defendant has used Texas media outlets to advertise its products and services; 

(4)  Defendant has several other customers and partners that operate extensively in Texas 

and the Eastern District of Texas integrating and implementing accused products; 

(5)  Defendant operates a website that solicits sales from Texas consumers; (6) Defendant 

engages in other persistent courses of conduct and derives substantial revenue from 

products and/or services provided to individuals in the District and in Texas; and 

(7) Defendant has purposefully established substantial, systematic, and continuous 

contacts with the District and should reasonably expect to be haled into court here. Thus, 

the Court’s exercise of jurisdiction over Defendant will not offend traditional notions of 

fair play and substantial justice. 

7. Venue is proper in this judicial district under 28 U.S.C. §§1391(b)-(c) and 1400(b) 

because Defendant does business in the State of Texas, Defendant has committed acts of 

infringement in Texas and in the District, a substantial part of the events or omissions 

giving rise to Blue Spike’s claims happened in the District, and Defendant is subject to 

personal jurisdiction in the District. 

ACCUSED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

8. Defendant makes, uses, offers for sale and/or imports into the U.S. products, 

systems, and/or services for analyzing television advertising and distributing 

synchronized advertisements to mobile devices and other “second screens,” including, 

but not limited to, its LiveSync, SearchSync, SiteSync, AdConnect, and TV Analytics 

Plugin (the “Accused Products”), that infringe one or more claims of the Patents-in-Suit. 
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9. Defendant has not sought or obtained a license for any of Blue Spike’s patented 

technologies. 

10. Yet Defendant’s Accused Products employ methods, devices, and systems taught 

by Blue Spike’s Patents-in-Suit. 

COUNT 1: 
INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 8,712,728 

11. Blue Spike incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 10 of 

this complaint. 

12. Blue Spike, LLC is assignee of the ’728 Patent, titled “Method and Device for 

Monitoring and Analyzing Signals,” and has ownership of all substantial rights in the 

’728 Patent, including the rights to grant sublicenses, to exclude others from using it, and 

to sue and obtain damages and other relief for past and future acts of patent infringement. 

13. The ’728 Patent is valid, is enforceable, and was duly and legally issued on April 

29, 2014. 

14. Without a license or permission from Blue Spike, Defendant has infringed and 

continues to infringe on one or more claims of the ’728 Patent—directly, contributorily, 

or by inducement—by importing, making, using, offering for sale, or selling products and 

devices that embody the patented invention, including, without limitation, one or more of 

the Accused Products, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

15. Defendant has been and now is indirectly infringing by way of inducing 

infringement by others and/or contributing to the infringement by others of the ’728 

Patent in the State of Texas, in this judicial district, and elsewhere in the United States, 

by, among other things, making, using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling, 

without license or authority, products for use in systems that fall within the scope of one 
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or more claims of the ’728 Patent. Such products include, without limitation, one or more 

of the Accused Products. Such products have no substantial non-infringing uses and are 

for use in systems that infringe the ’728 Patent. By making, using, importing, offering for 

sale, and/or selling the accused products, Defendant injured Blue Spike and is thus liable 

to Blue Spike for infringement of the ’728 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271. Those whom 

Defendant induces to infringe and/or to whose infringement Defendant contributes are 

product developers, resellers, and end users of the Accused Products, among others. 

Defendant had knowledge of the ’728 Patent at least as early as the service of this 

complaint and is thus liable for infringement of one or more claims of the ’728 Patent by 

actively inducing infringement and/or is liable as contributory infringer of one or more 

claims of the ’728 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

16. Defendant’s acts of infringement of the ’728 Patent have caused damage to Blue 

Spike, and Blue Spike is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained as a 

result of Defendant’s wrongful acts in an amount subject to proof at trial pursuant to 

35 U.S.C. § 271. Defendant’s infringement of Blue Spike’s exclusive rights under the 

’728 Patent will continue to damage Blue Spike, causing it irreparable harm, for which 

there is no adequate remedy at law, warranting an injunction from the Court. 

17. On information and belief, the infringement of the Patents-in-Suit by Defendant 

has been willful and continues to be willful. Defendant had knowledge of the Patents-in-

Suit, including but not limited to at least one or more of the following: 

a. The Patents-in-Suit are prominent, pioneering patents in the field of 

monitoring and analyzing signals. This is evidenced, in part, by the extent to 

which each of these patents has been forward-cited as prior art in connection with 
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the examination of subsequently-issued U.S. patents. The Patents-in-Suit have 

been forward-cited in at least 180 U.S.-issued patents and patent applications, 

including patents originally assigned to such prominent companies as Microsoft, 

Agilent, Nvidia, and Avaya. 

b. Through the filing and known attempted service of the original Complaint 

in this lawsuit. 

c. On information and belief, Defendant has at least had constructive notice 

of the ’728 Patent by operation of law. 

COUNT 2: 
INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 8,214,175 

18. Blue Spike incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 17 of 

this complaint. 

19. Blue Spike, LLC is assignee of the ’175 Patent, titled “Method and Device for 

Monitoring and Analyzing Signals,” and has ownership of all substantial rights in the 

’175 Patent, including the rights to grant sublicenses, to exclude others from using it, and 

to sue and obtain damages and other relief for past and future acts of patent infringement. 

20. The ’175 Patent is valid, is enforceable, and was duly and legally issued on July 3, 

2012. 

21. Without a license or permission from Blue Spike, Defendant has infringed and 

continues to infringe on one or more claims of the ’175 Patent—directly, contributorily, 

or by inducement—by importing, making, using, offering for sale, or selling products and 

devices that embody the patented invention, including, without limitation, one or more of 

the Accused Products, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

Case 6:15-cv-00487   Document 1   Filed 05/19/15   Page 6 of 16 PageID #:  6



 7 

22. Defendant has been and now is indirectly infringing by way of inducing 

infringement by others and/or contributing to the infringement by others of the ’175 

Patent in the State of Texas, in this judicial district, and elsewhere in the United States, 

by, among other things, making, using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling, 

without license or authority, products for use in systems that fall within the scope of one 

or more claims of the ’175 Patent. Such products include, without limitation, one or more 

of the Accused Products. Such products have no substantial non-infringing uses and are 

for use in systems that infringe the ’175 Patent. By making, using, importing, offering for 

sale, and/or selling the accused products, Defendant injured Blue Spike and is thus liable 

to Blue Spike for infringement of the ’175 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271. Those whom 

Defendant induces to infringe and/or to whose infringement Defendant contributes are 

product developers, resellers, and end users of the Accused Products, among others. 

Defendant had knowledge of the ’175 Patent at least as early as the service of this 

complaint and is thus liable for infringement of one or more claims of the ’175 Patent by 

actively inducing infringement and/or is liable as contributory infringer of one or more 

claims of the ’175 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

23. Defendant’s acts of infringement of the ’175 Patent have caused damage to Blue 

Spike, and Blue Spike is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained as a 

result of Defendant’s wrongful acts in an amount subject to proof at trial pursuant to 

35 U.S.C. § 271. Defendant’s infringement of Blue Spike’s exclusive rights under the 

’175 Patent will continue to damage Blue Spike, causing it irreparable harm, for which 

there is no adequate remedy at law, warranting an injunction from the Court. 
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24. On information and belief, the infringement of the Patents-in-Suit by Defendant 

has been willful and continues to be willful. Defendant had knowledge of the Patents-in-

Suit, including but not limited to at least one or more of the following: 

a. The Patents-in-Suit are prominent, pioneering patents in the field of 

monitoring and analyzing signals. This is evidenced, in part, by the extent to 

which each of these patents has been forward-cited as prior art in connection with 

the examination of subsequently-issued U.S. patents. The Patents-in-Suit have 

been forward-cited in at least 180 U.S.-issued patents and patent applications, 

including patents originally assigned to such prominent companies as Microsoft, 

Agilent, Nvidia, and Avaya. 

b. Through the filing and known attempted service of the original Complaint 

in this lawsuit in February 2013. 

25. On information and belief, Defendant has at least had constructive notice of the 

’175 Patent by operation of law. 

COUNT 3:  
INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 7,949,494 

 
26. Blue Spike incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 25 of 

this complaint. 

27. Blue Spike, LLC is assignee of the ’494 Patent, titled “Method and Device for 

Monitoring and Analyzing Signals,” and has ownership of all substantial rights in the 

‘494 Patent, including the rights to grant sublicenses, to exclude others from using it, and 

to sue and obtain damages and other relief for past and future acts of patent infringement. 

28. The ’494 Patent is valid, is enforceable, and was duly and legally issued on May 

24, 2011. 
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29. Without a license or permission from Blue Spike, Defendant has infringed and 

continues to infringe on one or more claims of the ’494 Patent—directly, contributorily, 

or by inducement—by importing, making, using, offering for sale, or selling products and 

devices that embody the patented invention, including, without limitation, one or more of 

the Accused Products, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

30. Defendant has been and now is indirectly infringing by way of inducing 

infringement by others and/or contributing to the infringement by others of the ‘494 

Patent in the State of Texas, in this judicial district, and elsewhere in the United States, 

by, among other things, making, using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling, 

without license or authority, products for use in systems that fall within the scope of one 

or more claims of the ’494 Patent. Such products include, without limitation, one or more 

of the Accused Products. By making, using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling 

the accused products, Defendant injured Blue Spike and is thus liable to Blue Spike for 

infringement of the ’494 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271. Those whom Defendant induces 

to infringe and/or to whose infringement Defendant contributes are product assemblers 

and developers, resellers, and end users of the Accused Products. Defendant had 

knowledge of the ’494 Patent at least as early as the service of this complaint and is thus 

liable for infringement of one or more claims of the ’494 Patent by actively inducing 

infringement and/or is liable as contributory infringer of one or more claims of the ’494 

Patent under 35 U.S.C. §271. 

31. Defendant’s acts of infringement of the ’494 Patent have caused damage to Blue 

Spike, and Blue Spike is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained as a 

result of Defendant’s wrongful acts in an amount subject to proof at trial pursuant to 
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35 U.S.C. §271. Defendant’s infringement of Blue Spike’s exclusive rights under the ’494 

Patent will continue to damage Blue Spike, causing it irreparable harm, for which there is 

no adequate remedy at law, warranting an injunction from the Court. 

32. On information and belief, the infringement of the Patents-in-Suit by Defendant 

has been willful and continues to be willful. Defendant had knowledge of the Patents-in-

Suit, including but not limited to at least one or more of the following: 

a. The Patents-in-Suit are prominent, pioneering patents in the field of 

monitoring and analyzing signals. This is evidenced, in part, by the extent to 

which each of these patents has been forward-cited as prior art in connection with 

the examination of subsequently-issued U.S. patents. The Patents-in-Suit have 

been forward-cited in at least 180 U.S.-issued patents and patent applications, 

including patents originally assigned to such prominent companies as Microsoft, 

Agilent, Nvidia, and Avaya. 

b. Through the filing and known attempted service of the original Complaint 

in this lawsuit in February 2013. 

33. On information and belief, Defendant has at least had constructive notice of the 

’494 Patent by operation of law. 

COUNT 4:  
INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 7,660,700 

 
34. Blue Spike incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 33 of 

this complaint. 

35. Blue Spike, LLC is assignee of the ’700 Patent, titled “Method and Device for 

Monitoring and Analyzing Signals,” and has ownership of all substantial rights in the 
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’700 Patent, including the rights to grant sublicenses, to exclude others from using it, and 

to sue and obtain damages and other relief for past and future acts of patent infringement. 

36. The ’700 Patent is valid, is enforceable, and was duly and legally issued on 

February 9, 2010. 

37. Without a license or permission from Blue Spike, Defendant has infringed and 

continues to infringe on one or more claims of the ’700 Patent—directly, contributorily, 

or by inducement—by importing, making, using, offering for sale, or selling products and 

devices that embody the patented invention, including, without limitation, one or more of 

the Accused Products, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

38. Defendant has been and now is indirectly infringing by way of inducing 

infringement by others and/or contributing to the infringement by others of the ’700 

Patent in the State of Texas, in this judicial district, and elsewhere in the United States, 

by, among other things, making, using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling, 

without license or authority, products for use in systems that fall within the scope of one 

or more claims of the ’700 Patent. Such products include, without limitation, one or more 

of the Accused Products. By making, using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling 

the accused products, Defendant injured Blue Spike and is thus liable to Blue Spike for 

infringement of the ’700 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271. Those whom Defendant induces 

to infringe and/or to whose infringement Defendant contributes are product assemblers 

and developers, resellers, and end users of the Accused Products. Defendant had 

knowledge of the ‘700 Patent at least as early as the service of this complaint and is thus 

liable for infringement of one or more claims of the ’700 Patent by actively inducing 

Case 6:15-cv-00487   Document 1   Filed 05/19/15   Page 11 of 16 PageID #:  11



 12 

infringement and/or is liable as contributory infringer of one or more claims of the ’700 

Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

39. Defendant’s acts of infringement of the ’700 Patent have caused damage to Blue 

Spike, and Blue Spike is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained as a 

result of Defendant’s wrongful acts in an amount subject to proof at trial pursuant to 

35 U.S.C. § 271. Defendant’s infringement of Blue Spike’s exclusive rights under the 

’700 Patent will continue to damage Blue Spike, causing it irreparable harm, for which 

there is no adequate remedy at law, warranting an injunction from the Court. 

40. On information and belief, the infringement of the Patents-in-Suit by Defendant 

has been willful and continues to be willful. Defendant had knowledge of the Patents-in-

Suit, including but not limited to at least one or more of the following: 

a. The Patents-in-Suit are prominent, pioneering patents in the field of 

monitoring and analyzing signals. This is evidenced, in part, by the extent to 

which each of these patents has been forward-cited as prior art in connection with 

the examination of subsequently-issued U.S. patents. The Patents-in-Suit have 

been forward-cited in at least 180 U.S.-issued patents and patent applications, 

including patents originally assigned to such prominent companies as Microsoft, 

Agilent, Nvidia, and Avaya. 

b. Through the filing and known attempted service of the original Complaint 

in this lawsuit in February 2013. 

41. On information and belief, Defendant has at least had constructive notice of the 

’700 Patent by operation of law. 
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COUNT 5:  
INFRINGEMENT OF U.S. PATENT NO. 7,346,472 

 
42. Blue Spike incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 41 of 

this complaint. 

43. Blue Spike, LLC is assignee of the ’472 Patent, titled “Method and Device for 

Monitoring and Analyzing Signals,” and has ownership of all substantial rights in the 

’472 Patent, including the rights to grant sublicenses, to exclude others from using it, and 

to sue and obtain damages and other relief for past and future acts of patent infringement. 

44. The ’472 Patent is valid, is enforceable, and was duly and legally issued on March 

18, 2008. 

45. Without a license or permission from Blue Spike, Defendant has infringed and 

continues to infringe on one or more claims of the ’472 Patent—directly, contributorily, 

or by inducement—by importing, making, using, offering for sale, or selling products and 

devices that embody the patented invention, including, without limitation, one or more of 

the Accused Products, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

46. Defendant has been and now is indirectly infringing by way of inducing 

infringement by others and/or contributing to the infringement by others of the ’472 

Patent in the State of Texas, in this judicial district, and elsewhere in the United States, 

by, among other things, making, using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling, 

without license or authority, products for use in systems that fall within the scope of one 

or more claims of the ’472 Patent. Such products include, without limitation, one or more 

of the Accused Products. By making, using, importing, offering for sale, and/or selling 

the accused products, Defendant injured Blue Spike and is thus liable to Blue Spike for 

infringement of the ’472 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271. Those whom Defendant induces 
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to infringe and/or to whose infringement Defendant contributes are product assemblers 

and developers, resellers, and end users of the Accused Products. Defendant had 

knowledge of the ’472 Patent at least as early as the service of this complaint and is thus 

liable for infringement of one or more claims of the ’472 Patent by actively inducing 

infringement and/or is liable as contributory infringer of one or more claims of the ’472 

Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

47. Defendant’s acts of infringement of the ’472 Patent have caused damage to Blue 

Spike, and Blue Spike is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained as a 

result of Defendant’s wrongful acts in an amount subject to proof at trial pursuant to 

35 U.S.C. §271. Defendant’s infringement of Blue Spike’s exclusive rights under the ’472 

Patent will continue to damage Blue Spike, causing it irreparable harm, for which there is 

no adequate remedy at law, warranting an injunction from the Court. 

48. On information and belief, the infringement of the Patents-in-Suit by Defendant 

has been willful and continues to be willful. Defendant had knowledge of the Patents-in-

Suit, including but not limited to at least one or more of the following: 

a. The Patents-in-Suit are prominent, pioneering patents in the field of 

monitoring and analyzing signals. This is evidenced, in part, by the extent to 

which each of these patents has been forward-cited as prior art in connection with 

the examination of subsequently-issued U.S. patents. The Patents-in-Suit have 

been forward-cited in at least 180 U.S.-issued patents and patent applications, 

including patents originally assigned to such prominent companies as Microsoft, 

Agilent, Nvidia, and Avaya. 
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b. Through the filing and known attempted service of the original Complaint 

in this lawsuit in February 2013. 

49. On information and belief, Defendant has at least had constructive notice of the 

’472 Patent by operation of law. 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

Blue Spike incorporates each of the allegations in paragraphs 1 through 49 above 

and respectfully asks the Court to: 

(a) enter a judgment that Defendant has directly infringed, contributorily infringed, 

and/or induced infringement of one or more claims of each of the Patents-in-Suit; 

(b) enter a judgment awarding Blue Spike all damages adequate to compensate it for 

Defendant’s infringement of, direct or contributory, or inducement to infringe, the 

Patents-in-Suit, including all pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the maximum 

rate permitted by law; 

(c) enter a judgment awarding treble damages pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284 for 

Defendant’s willful infringement of one or more of the Patents-in-Suit; 

(d) issue a preliminary injunction and thereafter a permanent injunction enjoining and 

restraining Defendant, its directors, officers, agents, servants, employees, and those 

acting in privity or in concert with them, and their subsidiaries, divisions, successors, and 

assigns, from further acts of infringement, contributory infringement, or inducement of 

infringement of the Patents-in-Suit; 

(c) enter a judgment requiring Defendant to pay the costs of this action, including all 

disbursements, and attorneys’ fees as provided by 35 U.S.C. § 285, together with 

prejudgment interest; and 
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(d) award Blue Spike all other relief that the Court may deem just and proper. 

 

 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Blue Spike demands a jury trial on all issues that may be determined by a jury. 

  
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Randall T. Garteiser 
Randall T. Garteiser 
  Texas Bar No. 24038912 
  rgarteiser@ghiplaw.com 
Christopher A. Honea 
  Texas Bar No. 24059967 
  chonea@ghiplaw.com 
Christopher S. Johns 
  Texas Bar No. 24044849 
  cjohns@ghiplaw.com 
Kirk J. Anderson 
  California Bar No. 289043 
  kanderson@ghiplaw.com 
GARTEISER HONEA, PLLC 
119 W Ferguson Street  
Tyler, Texas 75702 
Tel./Fax:  (888) 908-4400 

 
Counsel for Blue Spike LLC 
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